
 
 
 

AGENDA  
 
 
Meeting: Strategic Planning Committee 

Place:  Council Chamber - Council Offices, Monkton Park, Chippenham, 

SN15 1ER 

Date: Wednesday 12 September 2012 

Time: 10.30 am 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Stuart Figini, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 718376 or email 
stuart.figini@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 
Briefing Arrangements: 
 

 
Date  

 
Time  

 
Place 

PARTY SPOKESMEN 12.09.12 9.30am Council Chamber, 
Bradley Road 

 
  

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Mark Connolly 
Cllr Andrew Davis 
Cllr Peter Fuller 
Cllr Charles Howard 
Cllr Chris Humphries 
Cllr Julian Johnson 
Cllr John Knight 
 

Cllr Francis Morland 
Cllr Stephen Petty 
Cllr Leo Randall 
Cllr Anthony Trotman 
Cllr Ian West 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland 
 

 

 
 



 

 
 

 Part I 

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

 

1   Apologies for Absence 

 

2   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 10) 

 To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 16 
May 2012. 
 

 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 Councillors are requested to declare any personal or prejudicial interests or 
dispensations granted by the Standards Committee. 

 

4   Chairman's Announcements 

 

5   Public Participation and Councillors' Questions  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. 
 
Statements 
 
Members of the public who wish to speak either in favour or against an 
application or any other item on this agenda are asked to register in person no 
later than 5.50pm on the day of the meeting. 
 
The Chairman will allow up to 3 speakers in favour and up to 3 speakers against 
an application and up to 3 speakers on any other item on this agenda. Each 
speaker will be given up to 3 minutes and invited to speak immediately prior to 
the item being considered. The rules on public participation in respect of 
planning applications are detailed in the Council’s Planning Code of Good 
Practice. 
 
Questions  
 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the 
Council received in accordance with the constitution which excludes, in 
particular, questions on non-determined planning applications. Those wishing to 
ask questions are required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the 
officer named on the front of this agenda (acting on behalf of the Director of 



Resources) no later than 5pm on Wednesday 5 September 2012. Please 
contact the officer named on the front of this agenda for further advice. 
Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter 
is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 

 

6   W/12/01121/FUL - Land East of Westbury Road, North Bradley, Wiltshire - 
Construction of New Office, Fleet Vehicle Parking Area and Vehicle 
Preparation Centre including Associated Staff Car Parking, Landscaping & 
Access (Pages 11 - 26) 

 A report by the Case Officer is attached. 

 

7   Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.  Urgent items of a confidential nature may 
be considered under Part II of this agenda. 

 

 Part II 

 Item during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should 
be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be 

disclosed 
 

None 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 16 MAY 2012 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, BRADLEY 
ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, BA14 0RD. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Mark Connolly, Cllr Andrew Davis (Chairman), Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Charles Howard, 
Cllr Julian Johnson, Cllr John Knight, Cllr Francis Morland, Cllr Stephen Petty, 
Cllr Anthony Trotman, Cllr Ian West and Cllr Fred Westmoreland 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Peter Davis 
 
  

 
25 Membership Changes 

 
The Committee was informed that, at its meeting on 15 May 2012, Council had 
reconstituted this Committee, the changes in membership being as follows:- 
 
Cllr Christine Crisp to be replaced by Cllr Leo Randall. 
 
Cllr Leo Randall, Cllr Jacqui Lay & Cllr Trevor Carbin (substitute Members) to 
be replaced by Cllr Liz Bryant, Cllr Peter Colmer & Cllr Rosemary Brown.  
 
Cllr Julian Johnson to be elected as Vice-Chairman of the Committee. 
 

26 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Chris Humphries and Cllr Leo 
Randall. 
 

27 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 11 April 2012, subject to the inclusion of apologies for absence 
received from Cllr John Knight. 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

28 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

29 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

30 Public Participation and Councillors' Questions 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation and the manner in which 
the meeting would be held. 
 
Members of the public addressed the Committee as set out in Minute No 31, as 
detailed below. 
 
There were no questions received from members of the public or members of 
the Council.  
 
 

31 N.12.00718.FUL - Springfield Sports Centre, Beechfield Road, Corsham, 
SN13 9DN -  Extension to Leisure Centre providing Library, Community 
Hall, Meeting Rooms, Cafe, Youth & Learning Disability Day Centre, 
Creche, Council Offices, Registrar and Neighbourhood Police Station.  
Refurbishment of the Leisure Centre with New  Sports Facilities, including 
External Changing and All Weather Pitch, including New Floodlighting. 
Demolition of the Corsham Community Centre and Associated Alterations 
to Extern 
 

The following person spoke in support of the proposal: 
 
Mr Allan Bosley, Chair, Corsham Shadow COB 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set 
out the main issues in respect of the application.  He introduced the 
report which recommended that planning permission be granted, subject 
to conditions. He also drew attention to the late items. 

 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical 
questions after which the Committee received a statement from a 
member of the public as detailed above, expressing his views regarding 
the planning application.  
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Peter Davis, as local Member who 
warmly supported the application.   
 
After discussion, 
 

Page 2



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
To grant planning permission for the following reason and subject 
to the conditions set out below:- 
 
Reason 
 
The proposed development is considered to be an acceptable 
redevelopment of an existing leisure and community centre site for 
similar extended and enhanced purposes.  Subject to the 
imposition of relevant and necessary planning conditions, the 
development would not have an unacceptable impact upon the 
amenities of local residents or highway safety and would have the 
effect of enhancing sports, leisure and community facilities to the 
local community as well as improving the appearance of the site 
and wider public realm.  The proposal is considered to comply with 
the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework as well as 
Policies C3, CF1 and CF2 of the adopted North Wiltshire Local Plan 
2012. 

 

Conditions  

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. No development shall commence on site until details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details. 

  
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 

 
3. At no time shall any further windows be inserted into the Eastern 
elevation of the extended leisure centre building (that elevation 
facing the access road into the adjoining school and car park) 
unless otherwise agreed with the Local Planning Authority in the 
form of a new and separate planning permission in that regard. 

 
REASON:  In the interests of neighbour amenity. 

 
4. In complete accordance with the submitted details, there shall be 
no diversion of, or removal of planting along the route of, the public 

Page 3



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

right of way (known as The Ginnel) linking Beechfield Road to Paul 
Street to the rear of properties fronting Erneston Crescent. 

 
REASON:  For the avoidance of doubt and so as to ensure the 
longer term amenities of local residents. 

 
5. The construction phase of development shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with the submitted “Construction Noise 
Minimisation” document (prepared by Alec French Architects, 
27/04/12) unless otherwise agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
in the form of a new and separate planning permission in that 
regard. 

 
REASON:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 
neighbour amenity during the construction process. 

 
6. Prior to its fist installation, full details of all fixed plant (including 
all ventilation and extraction equipment) within the site shall have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The ventilation/extraction equipment shall be installed 
prior to the building/extension hereby approved is first occupied 
and shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 
REASON:  In the interests of the amenities of the area. 

 
7. In complete accordance with the submitted details, use of the all 
weather pitch, including operation of the associated floodlighting, 
shall cease at 22:00hrs each day and shall not resume use and 
operation until the following day at 08:30hrs, unless otherwise 
agreed with the Local Planning Authority in the form of a new and 
separate planning permission in that regard. 

 
REASON:  So as to avoid unnecessary and unacceptable noise and 
disturbance from the use and operation of the all-weather pitch. 

 
8. The floodlighting to be installed at the new all-weather pitch shall 
be installed and operated in complete accordance with the 
submitted details, and in particular the specification and 
performance summary contained within the details supplied by 
Musco Green Generation Lighting (dated 10/02/12) and drawing 
number E-SK400 (dated Jan’12). 

 
REASON:  For the avoidance of doubt and so as to avoid the 
unnecessary and unacceptable spillage of light to the detriment of 
residential amenity. 

 
9. No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on 
site until an Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) prepared by an 

Page 4



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

arboricultural consultant providing comprehensive details of 
construction works in relation to trees shall be submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  All works 
shall subsequently be carried out in strict accordance with the 
approved details. In particular, the method statement must provide 
the following: - 

 

• A specification for protective fencing to trees during both 
demolition and construction phases which complies with 
BS5837:2012 and a plan indicating the alignment of the 
protective fencing; 

• A specification for scaffolding and ground protection within tree 
protection zones in accordance with BS5837:2012 

• A schedule of tree works conforming to BS3998. 

• Details of general arboricultural matters such as the area for 
storage of materials, concrete mixing and use of fires;  

• Plans and particulars showing the siting of the service and 
piping infrastructure; 

• A full specification for the construction of any arboriculturally 
sensitive structures and sections through them, including the 
installation of boundary treatment works, the method of 
construction of the access driveway including details of the no-
dig specification and extent of the areas of the driveway to be 
constructed using a no-dig specification;   

• Details of the works requiring arboricultural supervision to be 
carried out by the developer’s arboricultural consultant, 
including details of the frequency of supervisory visits and 
procedure for notifying the Local Planning Authority of the 
findings of the supervisory visits; and 

• Details of all other activities, which have implications for trees 
on or adjacent to the site.  

 
REASON:  In order that the Local Planning Authority may be 
satisfied that the trees to be retained on and adjacent to the site will 
not be damaged during the construction works and to ensure that 
as far as possible the work is carried out in accordance with current 
best practice and section 197 of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
10. The development shall be carried out as specified in the 
approved Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS), and shall be 
supervised by an arboricultural consultant. 

 
REASON: To prevent trees on site from being damaged during 
construction works. 

 

Page 5



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

11.  No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor 
shall any retained tree be topped or lopped other than in 
accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the 
prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  Any topping 
or lopping approved shall be carried out in accordance with British 
Standard 3998 (Tree Work). 
 
(a) If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, 

another tree shall be planted at the same place and that tree 
shall be of such size and species and shall be planted at such 
time, as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
(b) No equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought on to the 

site for the purpose of the development, until a scheme showing 
the exact position of protective fencing to enclose all retained 
trees beyond the outer edge of the overhang of their branches in 
accordance with British Standard 5837 (2005): Trees in Relation 
to Construction, has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority, and; the protective fencing has 
been erected in accordance with the approved details. This 
fencing shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and 
surplus materials have been removed from the site.  Nothing 
shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with 
this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not 
be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the prior 
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
In this condition “retained tree” means an existing tree which is to 
be retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars; 
and paragraphs (a) and (b) above shall have effect until the 
expiration of five years from the first occupation or the completion 
of the development, whichever is the later. 
REASON: To enable the local planning authority to ensure the 
retention of trees on the site in the interests of visual amenity. 
12. No development shall commence until a surface water drainage 
masterplan has been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. The masterplan shall be in accordance 
with the Flood Risk Assessment (prepared by Integral Engineering 
Design and dated January 2012) and include details of the phasing 
of surface water drainage infrastructure including source control 
measures where achievable. The development shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved scheme. 

 
REASON: To ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 
103. 

 

Page 6



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

13. No development shall take place on each plot, phase or parcel 
of land until the detailed drainage design has been submitted to, 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall be 
in accordance with the approved FRA (prepared by Integral 
Engineering Design and dated January 2012) and incorporate 
sustainable drainage principles where achievable. The scheme shall 
subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details before the development on each plot, phase or parcel of land 
is completed.  

 
REASON: To ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 
103. 

 
14. Prior to the commencement of development, a construction 
method statement shall have been submitted and agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The construction method 
statement shall address the following issues: 

 

• Appropriate location of a bunded works compound for storage 
of materials, equipment and fuels to avoid pollution of habitats 
or danger to wildlife individuals 

• Protection of trees to be retained in line with BS5837:2005 - 
Trees in relation to construction 

• Timing constraints with respect to nesting birds in relation to 
removal of existing vegetation including hedges and removal or 
significant trimming of trees 

• Suitable processes for removing existing roofing or other 
materials to enable the adjoining building extensions, such that 
roosting birds, bats or other wildlife individuals will not be 
harmed. 

• Appropriate night time lighting of the site during construction 
that will be directed away from natural habitat features 

• An appropriate process to be followed for the demolition of the 
existing community centre buildings to include further 
assessment of bat activity and methods of working designed to 
protect bats, such as soft stripping of roof materials and 
cladding.  

 
REASON:  So as to ensure the construction works are completed 
without unnecessary and unacceptable impact upon the ecology of 
the locality 

 
15.  Prior to the closure of the existing tennis courts on the site, a 
“Community Use Scheme” shall have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by  the Local Planning Authority in consultation 
with Sport England.  The Scheme shall include details of pricing 
policy, hours of use, access by non-school users/non-members, 

Page 7



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

management responsibilities and include a mechanism for review.  
The approved scheme shall be implemented upon the closure of the 
last of the existing tennis courts on the development site. 

 
REASON:  To provide safe community access to Corsham School’s 
tennis courts while the Leisure Centre courts are closed and to 
provide the opportunity to review this arrangement to provide 
community access in the future, to ensure sufficient benefit to the 
development of sport. 

 
16.  Prior to the commencement of works to create the new artificial 
grass pitch or tennis courts (whichever are the sooner), the detailed 
design and layout of the new outdoor sports facilities shall have 
been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority in consultation with Sport England.  Unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority beforehand, 
such details shall be in complete accordance with the Sport 
England/NGB Technical Design Guidance (including the FAs 
Artificial Pitch Guidelines for the artificial grass pitch and Sport 
England Guide to the Design Specification & Construction of Multi-
Use Games Areas for the tennis courts).  Development shall be 
complete in complete accordance with those details so agreed. 

 
REASON:  To ensure the development is fit for purpose, sustainable 
and subject to the necessary high quality design standards. 

 
17.  Prior to the commencement of development, details of 
temporary protective fencing which shall be installed around the 
existing playing field (which shall include location, height, type and 
materials used) shall have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Such fencing shall be 
erected in complete accordance with details so agreed prior to the 
commencement of works to create the new artificial turf pitch and 
shall be maintained for the entire duration of those works and 
removed upon completion of the artificial turf pitch. 

 
REASON:  To ensure the safe and efficient use of the existing 
playing fields and to offer protection during the construction phase 
of development. 

 
18.  The artificial grass pitch and the tennis courts to be created 
shall be used for outdoor sport and for no other purpose (including, 
without limitation, any other purpose within Class D2 of the Use 
Classess Order 2005, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in 
any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order with or 
without modification). 

 

Page 8



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON:  To protect the artificial grass pitch and tennis courts for 
loss and/or damage so as to maintain the quality of and secure the 
safe use of sports pitches. 

 
19.  No development shall commence until details for the phasing of 
development, including the provision of the tennis courts and 
artificial grass pitch, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority after consultation with Sport 
England.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure the satisfactory quantity, quality and 
accessibility of the compensatory provision which secures a 
continuity of use. 

 
20. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in 
accordance with the submitted plans and documents listed below. 
No variation from the approved plans should be made without the 
prior approval of the local planning authority. Amendments may 
require the submission of a further application. 

 
Plans 

 
Campus Site Plan 1000 rev.C 
Site Plan Proposed 1100 rev.J  (date stamped 03/05/12) 
Demolition Plan  1060 rev.B 
Phasing Plan  1070 rev.A 
Footpath Diversion  2338_101 
GA Plan Level 00  1400 rev.H  (date stamped 03/05/12) 
GA Plan Level 01  1401 rev.F 
GA Plan Level 02  1402 rev.C 
Site Sections  1150 rev.A 
GA Elevations  1250 rev.A 
Part Elevation – North facade  1350 
Part Elevation – West facade 1351 
Straight Elevations 5-8  1600 
Straight Elevations 9-12  1601 
Landscape general Arrangement  2338_100 rev.A 
Landscape Masterplan North  2338_102a rev.B 
Landscape Masterplan South  2338_102b rev.B 
ATP Plan  2338_103 
Planting Plan  2338_200 
Elevational Sections  2338_300 
Elevational Sections  2338_301 
Design and Access Statement (Alec French Architects March 2012) 
Landscape Design Report (The Landmark Practice March 2012) 
Site Investigation No.Z1116 – Factual and Interpretive Report (CJ 
Associates March 2012) 

Page 9



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Flood Risk Assessment (Integral Engineering Design January 2012) 
Corsham Campus Travel Plan (Corsham Shadow Community 
Operations Board January 2012) 
Transport Statement (KTC February 2012) 
Arboricultural Implications Assessment (Hillside Trees Ltd February 
2012) 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (The Landmark Practice November 
2011) 
Building Inspection for Bat Roosts (The Landmark Practice January 
2012) 
Artificial Turf Pitch: Impact Noise Assessment (Mach Acoustics 
30/01/2012) 
Musco Green Generation Lighting floodlighting project Summary 
(10-Feb-2012) 
External Lighting Layout and Lux Plot for Planning Stage D  ESK400 
Construction Noise Minimisation statement (Alec French Architects 
27/04/12) (Date stamped 3rd May 2012) 

 
All drawings and documents date stamped 14th March 2012, unless 
otherwise indicated. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development is implemented as 
approved. 

 
 

32 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 11.15 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 10



1 

REPORT TO THE STRATEGIC PLANNING  
COMMITTEE                                  

   

Date of Meeting 12.09.2012 

Application Number W/12/01121/FUL 

Site Address Land East of Westbury Road, North Bradley, Wiltshire  

Proposal Construction of new office, fleet vehicle parking area and vehicle 
preparation centre, including associated staff car parking, landscaping 
and access 

Applicant Hitachi Capital Commercial Vehicle Services 

Town/Parish Council North Bradley      

Electoral Division Southwick 
 

Unitary Member: Francis Morland 
 

Grid Ref 386241   155225 

Type of application Full Plan 

Case Officer  Mr Mike Wilmott 01225 716775 Ext 16775 
mike.wilmott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

  
Reason for the application being considered by Committee   
This application has been referred to the Strategic Planning Committee by the Director of 
Development Services as it is a large scale major development (over 2ha in size) that raises issues of 
more than local importance in that it concerns a major local employer in Trowbridge relocating to a 
site in a neighbouring parish. In addition, the proposed site is alongside an existing business park, 
and although outside of the current development limits in the West Wiltshire District Plan, may be 
considered to be a sustainable and suitable site in the light of the National Planning Policy Framework 
and the emerging Wiltshire Core Strategy.  If permission is granted in this location, prior to the 
adoption of the Core Strategy it could set a precedent for similar proposals on other greenfield sites 
elsewhere in the County. 
 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
To consider the above application and to recommend that planning permission be granted  
 
Neighbourhood Responses – Three letters of objection and one of observation have been received. 
Details of these are set out in the report below. One letter of support has been received. 
 
Parish Council Response – North Bradley PC object to the proposal, for the reasons set out in the 
report:  West Ashton PC recognise that the site lies wholly within North Bradley, but formally support 
the objections of North Bradley PC.  
 
2. Report Summary  
 
The main issues to consider are:  
 

• Principle of the development; 

• Landscape impact; 

• Highway Issues; 

• Ecological impact 

• Other issues 

 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 11



2 

3. Site Description  
 
The site is currently an agricultural field in arable use located on the north-western side of the 
roundabout at the south end of the White Horse Business Park, where the A363 and Westbury Road 
meet. The site is bounded to the south and east by Westbury Road and the A363 respectively, whilst 
to the north lies the White Horse Business Park. The western boundary is marked by a field hedgerow 
beyond which lies another large arable field. Other than the hedgerow, the site has no other 
landscape features. It has a slight slope, with the southern corner by the roundabout approximately 
2.5 metres lower than the highest part on the western boundary. To the east, on the opposite side of 
the road, lies the Meridian Business Park, dominated by the car showrooms of the various franchises 
operated by Platinum Motors.  
 
The land has an agricultural land classification of 3b (moderate quality).  A public footpath crosses the 
northern part of the site, linking the A363 with the lane at Little Common. 
 
The site is approximately 2 miles by road from the centre of Trowbridge. The nearest dwelling (on 
Westbury Road) is 45 metres from the boundary of the site and over 120 metres from the site of the 
proposed office building. The nearest point of the outer boundary of the village policy limit for North 
Bradley defined in the West Wiltshire District Plan is 250 metres away from the site and on the 
opposite side of Westbury Road.  
 
4. Relevant Planning History  
 
The site has no relevant planning history 
 
5. Proposal  
 
The applicant, Hitachi Capital Commercial Vehicle Services, is a local employer currently based in 
Trowbridge. Its core business is the preparation, leasing and management of bespoke commercial 
vehicles. The company has been successful and has grown to employ 97 staff, at the same time 
outgrowing its current site at Canal Road, Trowbridge. It foresees further growth over the next three 
years to around 150 staff and seeks a site for its new divisional headquarters for delivery by March 
2014 that can meet its needs for a main office building and vehicle preparation facility, as well as 
parking for staff and some of the vehicles. The March 2014 date is driven by the expiry of a lease on a 
significant part of the existing premises. 
 
The company has a long association with Trowbridge and most of their staff are from the local area. 
As a result, the company seeks a business park style site within or on the edge of Trowbridge that will 
allow it to provide a high quality headquarters. Whilst most staff are office based, a vehicle 
preparation facility is also required for adaptions to be made to vehicles before going out on lease, 
together with an accompanying compound area sufficient to store upto 200 commercial vehicles. The 
total size of site sought is over 2 ha. The company have carried out an extensive search of potential 
site options in the Trowbridge area but have been unable to find alternative suitable sites of this size 
that could be delivered within the timetable sought. However, the site at North Bradley is of the 
required size, lies adjacent to the White Horse Business Park and opposite the Meridian Business 
Park and can be brought forward for development within the timetable sought by the company.   
 
The proposals for the site include a two storey office building of ca 1730 square metres with a curved 
structure addressing the curve of the roundabout at the Westbury Road/A363 junction. Vehicular 
access to the site would be directly from the A363 and in a position closer to the White Horse 
Business Park than the current entrance on the opposite side of the road to the Meridian Business 
Park.  Close to this access would be built the vehicle preparation centre, a smaller building of 500 
square metres floorspace where commercial vehicles would be fitted out on a bespoke basis before 
being leased. A tree planting belt (of between 12-20 metres in depth) would be planted on the western 
boundary of the site, inset from the existing hedgerow, connecting to the adjacent perimeter planting 
of the White Horse Business Park. This planting, on a low mound of 1.5 – 2 metres in height, following 
a curvilinear boundary, would encompass the staff car parking area and the larger open parking 
compound for the vehicle stock.   
 
 

Page 12



3 

6. Planning Policy  
 
Wiltshire & Swindon Structure Plan – policy DP1 gives priority to meeting local needs for jobs in all 
settlements whilst minimising the loss of countryside.  
 
West Wiltshire District Plan – The site lies outside of the village policy limits for North Bradley and is 
also outside (although immediately adjacent to the boundaries of)  the White Horse Business Park. 
Policy C1 permits employment development proposals of this nature in the open countryside where 
there is an overriding benefit to the local economy. Policy C31a promotes quality of design; C32 deals 
with landscaping proposals; C34a with resource consumption and C38 with nuisance to neighbouring 
properties.  
 
Wiltshire Core Strategy - draft policy CP34 supports proposals for employment development outside 
of Trowbridge that seek to retain or expand businesses currently located within the town, as well as 
those that are considered essential to the wider strategic interest of the economic development of 
Wiltshire, where they meet sustainable development objectives and do not adversely affect nearby 
buildings and the surrounding area or detract from residential amenity. 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework - paragraph 19 – supports sustainable economic growth. 
with economic, social and environmental gains sought through new development.  
 
7. Consultations  
 
Parish Council  
 
North Bradley Parish Council object to the proposal on the following grounds: 
 
a) Significant increase in traffic to and from the site; 
 
b) The fact that the site is a Greenfield site, a sacrosanct buffer strip which has been withdrawn from 
the Core Strategy; 
 
c) Since the initial Hitachi plan launch, the site size has increased by more than 25% and originally did 
not include footpath 8; 
 
d) Hitachi comments about other unsuitable sites are very prejudicial and don’t carry weight; 
 
e) Parish Council feel misled and deceived over proposal and threat of moving out of Trowbridge if 
Hitachi cannot have this site. Councillors consider tantamount to pressure/blackmail; 
 
f) When information was given out at the first Hitachi meeting they stated that most employees didn’t 
live in the Trowbridge area, but are now stating employees are local – definite inconsistency; 
 
g) Light pollution to surrounding properties. 
 
West Ashton Parish Council formally supports all of the comments made by North Bradley PC, 
although recognising that the site is not in West Ashton parish.  
 
Trowbridge Town Council – no comment 
 
Wiltshire Council Spatial Planning – Support the proposals 
 
Policy context 
The principal policy consideration hinges on the fact that the application proposes development of 
agricultural land which has not been allocated for development.  In this sense, the proposal 
constitutes development in the open countryside, albeit on land that immediately abuts an existing, 
well designed business park and opposite more recent vehicle sales premises.  In this sense, there is 
also the need to consider matters in relation to the protection of North Bradley village’s identity. 
The comments set out below relate to the principal of development from a policy perspective. 
 

Page 13



4 

West Wiltshire District Local Plan – First Alteration 2004 
The West Wiltshire Local Plan (WWLP) was adopted June 2004 and forms part of the statutory 
development plan for the former West Wiltshire District area. The site falls to the south of Trowbridge 
and to the east of North Bradley immediately adjacent to the existing White Horse Business Park. The 
proposal lies outside the defined Town Policy Limits (H1) of Trowbridge and the Village Policy Limits 
(H17) of North Bradley. Therefore, the proposal falls within open countryside and should principally be 
determined against Policy C1 – Countryside Protection of the WWLP 2004. 
 
Policy C1 of the WWLP 2004 seeks to maintain and protect the quality and variety of the countryside, 
the water environment, the rural landscape and wildlife through the control of development and 
positive planning measures. The policy also states that development proposals in the open 
countryside will not be permitted, other than those which encourage diversification of the rural 
economy and rural recreation, unless there is an agricultural, forestry or other overriding justification 
such as essential transport improvements, schemes of national importance or overriding benefit to 
the local economy (emphasis applied). 
 
The principle issue with the chosen site is the fact that the land has not been identified within the 
development plan (adopted and emerging) for employment use.  Therefore, if this application is to be 
considered as an exception to policy, then the test will be whether the proposal offers “overriding 
benefit” to the local economy.  
 
In this particular case, the applicant has sought to demonstrate a clear operational and business 
commitment to remain in Trowbridge.  Alternative options for relocation have been identified and 
effectively dismissed for a range of sound reasons.  Although this, in itself, does not entirely 
demonstrate why the application offers an overriding benefit to the local economy, it nonetheless 
presents an opportunity to retain, maintain and enhance employment opportunities in Trowbridge. 
In addition, it is worth referencing the fact that the extant WWLP sets out a clear objective to 
“...sustain a buoyant local economy and to create suitable conditions for the expansion of 
existing firms and the development of new businesses” (emphasis applied).  This application offers a 
tangible expression of this objective which should be a material consideration in the decision making 
process. 
 
Wiltshire Core Strategy – Submission Draft 2012    
The Wiltshire Core Strategy has recently been submitted to the Secretary of State for examination. 
The strategy once adopted will present a unified policy approach for the whole of the Wiltshire Council 
administrative area. The underpinning goal of the strategy is to strengthen communities, wherever 
possible, by maintaining and increasing the supply of jobs to ensure that Wiltshire remains strong and 
prosperous. The underlying principles of the strategy seek to manage future development to ensure 
that communities have an appropriate balance of jobs, services and facilities and homes. 
 
This core strategy plans for the provision of around 178 hectares (ha) of new strategic employment 
land over the plan period to 2026, to supplement that already built or granted planning permission 
between 2006 and 2011. The overall strategy for employment growth is set out in Core Policy 2, and 
specific sites are identified in the Area Strategies. 
 
In developing the core strategy, the evidence gathered in relation to the economy indicated that 
Wiltshire does not have sufficient land available in the right place at the right time to meet immediate 
business needs.  Wiltshire Council has sought to address this issue through a flexible policy approach 
that allows for investment opportunities to occur at windfall development sites.  In this particular 
circumstance, there is an immediate need to help retain and offer opportunity for an existing employer 
within Trowbridge. 
 
Core Policy 34 of the core strategy presents a flexible and objective approach to handling applications 
for additional employment land. Core Policy 34 states that additional employment land outside the 
Principal Settlements, Market Towns and Local Service Centres that seek to retain businesses 
located within the settlements listed in the settlements strategy (Core Policy 1) and are 
considered essential to the wider strategic interest of the economic development of Wiltshire, 
as determined by the council, will be supported where they: 
 

• meet sustainable development objectives as set out in the polices of this Core Strategy 
Page 14



5 

• are consistent in scale with their location, do not adversely affect nearby buildings and the 
surrounding area or detract from residential amenity 

• are supported by evidence that they are required to benefit the local economic and social 
needs 

• would not undermine the delivery of strategic employment allocations 

• are supported by adequate infrastructure.  
(emphasis applied) 
 
Although support for such proposals will generally be considered as an exception to the presumption 
in favour of developing allocated sites, Policy 34, and the core strategy more generally, nonetheless 
maintains a general commitment to applications that seek to retain existing businesses within the 
local economy. 
 
In terms of addressing the five exceptions criteria, it is clear from the application that Hitachi Capital 
can make a strong case for developing the land adjacent to the White Horse Business Park.  In 
addition, as the proposals effectively reflect Hitachi Capital’s own interests – i.e. relocation with 
additional investment rather than a speculative application for general employment use, there is 
unlikely to be an impact on the successful delivery of the strategic employment allocation relating to 
the Ashton Park development area. 
 
Wiltshire & Swindon Waste Core Strategy 2009 
 
As an aside to the primary policy considerations, it is noted that the application is supported by a 
Waste Audit Report in accordance with policy WCS6 of the Wiltshire and Swindon Waste Core 
Strategy. 
 
Having reviewed the submitted document, it is clear that the applicant has made a firm commitment to 
reducing and re-using waste materials wherever possible, a principle that underlines European, 
national and local policy.  In terms of detail, the submitted proposals present a strategy for managing 
the anticipated arisings of waste materials generated through the construction and occupation 
phases.  Therefore, on the basis of what has been submitted, the applicant’s Waste Audit presents 
sufficient information to meet the policy requirements of WCS6.   
 
Summary 
This application presents a justified and cogent set of proposals designed to allow Hitachi Capital to 
maintain an economic presence within Trowbridge and a base from which to invest in their operations, 
thereby maintaining and creating valuable jobs in the local economy. 
 
In terms of core policy, the basic consideration boils down to whether there is sufficient support for 
allowing development on an unallocated site within what is technically defined as open countryside.  
However, in this particular case, there is also the added imperative of securing a long-term future for 
one of Trowbridge’s more significant employers.  In this sense, although a balance will need to be 
drawn, there would appear to be sufficient policy support to justify the proposals on the grounds of the 
exception criteria set out in adopted (‘saved’) policy C1 of the WWLP; and emerging policy 34 of the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy.  
 
Wiltshire Council Highways - No objection, subject to minor changes to the access junction design 
and conditions securing a Travel Plan and completion of the access, turning area and parking spaces 
before the development is brought into use. (Plans have now been received securing the access 
junction changes required). 
 
The public footpath must be diverted as part of the proposals and the details shown of the diversion 
route are wholly acceptable.   
 
Wiltshire Council Ecologist – No objection. The proposed native-species planning will deliver a 
significant enhancement to the ecological value of the site, providing new habitat opportunities and 
reinforcing the connectivity of the site, benefitting a wide range of species in the long term. Great 
Crested newts have been identified at ponds in the vicinity, but the outline mitigation strategy for them 
is satisfactory.  
 

Page 15



6 

Wiltshire Council Landscape and Forestry Officer – No objection  
 
Environment Agency - no objection, recommend a planning condition requiring a surface water 
drainage plan for the site based on sustainable drainage principles. 
 
Wessex Water – No objection  
 
8. Publicity  
 
The applicants have carried out pre-application public consultation, including meeting with the parish 
council in October 2011, a briefing of the Trowbridge Community Area Board in May 2012 and a 
public consultation event for local residents in May 2012. A further discussion with the parish council 
was offered by the applicants in April 2012 but was declined by the parish on the grounds that their 
views had already been expressed.      
 
The application has been advertised by site and press notices and neighbour notification. Expiry date: 
for the latest press advert – 24th August 2013.  
 
Objections have been received from 3 local residents with observations from a fourth. A letter of 
support has been received from Trowbridge and District Chamber of Commerce  
 
Summary of points raised:  
 
- Brownfield sites should be built upon before green field sites; 

- The field should remain undeveloped as an important buffer zone between the business park and     

the village of North Bradley; 

- It would set a precedent for other companies to try and build on green field sites; 

- The land is not designated for industrial or commercial development 

- The Platinum garage is already a blot on the landscape; 

- The Spatial Strategy allocates land off of West Ashton Road and not this site; 

- Cycling facilities should be improved; 

- The wildlife reserve around the lake by the railway should be protected and enhanced; 

- Lighting could have an adverse impact; 

- The development should not add to the existing traffic problem in the area; 

- Noise should be mitigated; 

 

The Chamber of Commerce supports the application on the grounds that Hitachi’s presence is 

important to Trowbridge as a major national and global brand. This opportunity will protect 

existing jobs and offer additional employment, enhancing the local economy. 

 
9. Planning Considerations  
 
9.1 Principle of Development 
The starting point for the consideration of the application is the development plan. In the West 
Wiltshire District Plan the application site lies on agricultural land outside of the defined Town Limits 
for Trowbridge and the Village Policy Limits and (alongside) but outside of the employment policy 
area of the White Horse Business Park.  In this location, policy C1 of the District Plan generally 
restricts development proposals, but does make an exception for schemes of ‘overriding benefit to the 
local economy’.  In this instance, Hitachi is an established local employer of a significant size seeking 
to develop and expand its business close to its existing roots. It is clearly a benefit to the local 
community and the local economy if they are able to fulfil this aim.  This site meets their requirements 
whilst other potential alternatives cannot, due either to space restrictions or matters such as the tight 
timetable required for development (occupation by March 2014) or the terms on which the land is 
being made available. North Bradley PC have suggested a site at the West Wilts Trading Estate at 
Commerce Way, but this is not considered suitable by the applicants due to its smaller and less 
regular size and the terms on which it is available (not freehold).  Looking at what would be 
‘overridden’ if this site were to be developed, it is worthwhile noting that this is not an environmentally 

Page 16



7 

sensitive site and that it has no national or local landscape designations and is not high quality 
agricultural land. It is also not an isolated site, but is closely related to both the adjacent White Horse 
and Meridian Business Parks. In sum, it is considered that the proposal does meet the exception 
criteria in policy C1, as well as the overall strategy for development in the plan that is outlined as 
’continuing to meet the essential development needs of the local economy and community’.  
 
The West Wiltshire District Plan will be replaced by the Wiltshire Core Strategy, which is now in an 
advanced stage, having been presented to the Planning Inspectorate for their consideration.  This is a 
plan that states at the outset that it aims to be ‘a strategy that places an emphasis on economic 
growth as the driving force behind meeting (the Council’s) objectives’ and that ‘Planning for job growth 
and meeting the needs of business are central to this strategy’. Core Policy 34 on Additional 
Employment Land supports developments outside of the Principal Settlements such as Trowbridge 
that ‘seek to retain or expand businesses currently located within or adjacent to the settlements’, as 
well as supporting developments that are ‘considered essential to the wider strategic interest of the 
economic development of Wiltshire, as determined by the Council’ . In both cases, the support is 
conditional on the proposals meeting a number of criteria, including meeting sustainable development 
objectives; being consistent in scale with their location and not adversely affecting nearby buildings 
and the surrounding area, or detracting from residential amenity; are supported by evidence that they 
are required to benefit the local economic and social needs; would not undermine the delivery of 
strategic employment locations; and are supported by adequate infrastructure. 
 
It is considered that the proposal is in accordance with the thrust and flexibility of this emerging policy. 
More specifically, looking at the criteria in turn;    
 

• The application is from a company located within Trowbridge seeking to expand; 

• The site proposed is in a sustainable location, lying as it does adjacent to existing business 
parks with good connectivity to the residential and areas of Trowbridge and the town centre.  

• The size of the proposal is commensurate with its location, being similar to that of other 
developments on the adjacent business parks; 

• The proposal does not adversely affect any nearby buildings, nor does it detract from residential 
amenity as the nearest dwelling is over 100 metres from the new office building. The impact 
on the surrounding area is considered to be acceptable and is addressed in more detail below; 

• The proposal is not speculative, but is put forward by a local company seeking to expand – in 
this regard the proposal would not undermine the delivery of other strategic locations as these 
would not be available within the time frame sought; 

• The site has adequate infrastructure, including good access to the main road network. 
 
In relation to the National Planning Policy Framework, this seeks to promote sustainable 
development. Significant weight is attached to the need to support economic growth through the 
planning system. Existing business sectors are to be supported, with policies being flexible enough to 
accommodate needs not anticipated in the plans and to allow a rapid response to changes in 
economic circumstances. Net gains in matters such as biodiversity are to be sought where possible.  
 
In sum, it is considered that the proposal is in accordance with the strategy and exceptions criteria of 
the District Plan and with the thrust and detailed policy of the emerging Core Strategy. It is supported 
by the National Planning Policy Framework. 
   
9.2 Impact on the appearance of the area 
The appearance of the area will inevitably change, as what is currently a green field will be 
developed. However, by providing a tree belt around the western boundary, reinforcing the existing 
hedgerow line, a better landscaped setting is provided to the area of the business parks, particularly 
the car showrooms at Meridian Business Park, when viewed from the scattered properties along 
Westbury Road and from Little Common. As the site is not isolated in the countryside, but has the 
Meridian Business Park on the opposite side of the road and the White Horse Business Park to the 
north, it will appear from the south and east as part of the business park infrastructure. The two storey 
height of the main office building is in keeping with the height of other business park buildings in the 
vicinity, and the fact that the building will be constructed at the lower part of the site means that its 
impact when seen from the nearest houses will be further reduced. The office building itself is 
curvilinear, following the curve of the roundabout that it sits adjacent to. Although the main entrance 

Page 17



8 

and openings are on the northern side, facing the car park, the detailing of the roadside elevation 
ensures that there is articulation on this side. Although the parish council at North Bradley describe 
the site as part of a ‘sacrosanct buffer strip’, it is not considered that its development in the manner 
proposed will have any adverse impact on the setting, appearance or amenity of the village. 
 
9.3 Highway issues 
The main entrance is located directly from the A363, closer to the White Horse Business Park than 
the current access to Meridian Park on the opposite side of the road. No objections have been raised 
on road safety grounds to this location. Whilst there will be some additional traffic from the expanded 
business, some of this will simply be offset from the current location at Canal Road. The overall 
increase does not justify an objection on highway grounds and no objection has been raised by the 
Council’s highway officers. 74 car parking spaces for staff are provided within the site, together with 
cycle facilities. 
 
A public footpath crosses the northern part of the site, and this will require formal diversion as a 
separate process. (In practice, although the route is signposted, it appears that walkers currently 
already divert around the edge of the field rather than cut through it).  
 
9.4 Ecology Issues 
The site is currently an arable field with no features of ecological interest beyond the boundary hedge. 
By introducing a wooded buffer strip alongside this hedge, the ecological value of the site will be 
enhanced, providing a wildlife corridor that links into the wooded landscape setting of the adjacent 
White Horse Business Park. There will thus be a net biodiversity gain from the development. 
 
9.5 Other Issues 
The application incorporates an acoustic fence that will prevent any undue noise disturbance to local 
properties and proposes a lighting scheme that will minimise light spill and glare. Both of these 
matters are covered by relevant conditions set out below. 
 
9.5 Conclusion 
Although the site is not allocated for development, its development in the manner proposed to assist 
the expansion and continued development of a locally based firm wanting to stay in the area is in line 
with the strategy of both the existing District Plan and the emerging Wiltshire Core Strategy. The site 
proposed is well located adjacent to existing business parks and is not in an environmentally sensitive 
area with any landscape, green belt or other protected designations. The proposal is in accordance 
with the thrust of the National Planning Policy Framework that encourages economic development 
whilst also delivering benefits in terms of enhanced biodiversity. Permission is therefore 
recommended. 
   
Recommendation: Permission 
 
For the following reason(s): 
 
The proposed development is sited in a sustainable location adjacent to existing business 
parks. Whilst the site is not allocated for development, the proposal will assist an important 
locally based employer to develop and expand, and it meets the exception criteria set out in 
policy C1 of the West Wiltshire District Plan and is in line with the requirements of policy CP34 
of the emerging Wiltshire Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework, where a 
core planning principle is set out as proactively supporting sustainable economic 
development.  The development will also deliver enhanced biodiversity by the creation of a 
woodland belt around the western perimeter of the site.  
 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 
 
 REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

Page 18



9 

2 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping (Drawing no’s 1038-201 
Rev A & 1038-202 rev A) shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following 
the first occupation of the office building or the completion of the development whichever is the 
sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be 
protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five 
years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the development or 
in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
         REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the protection of 

existing important landscape features. 
 
3 No building shall be first occupied until a landscape management plan, including long-term 

design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape 
areas has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
landscape management plan shall be carried out as approved in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 
         REASON: To ensure the proper management of the landscaped areas in the interests of visual 

amenity 
 
4 No development shall commence until a surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on 

sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological context of the 
development, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
scheme shall include details of how the scheme shall be maintained and managed after 
completion. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details before the development is completed.   

 
         REASON: To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve and protect water quality, 

improve habitat and amenity and ensure future maintenance of the surface water drainage 
system. 

 
5 The site access junction shall be completed in accordance with the approved details shown on 

Drawing No. FMW 0781 GA01 D before the first use of the development. 
 
         REASON: In the interests of road safety. 
 
6 The Travel Plan dated June 2012 and contained in Appendix F of the Transport Assessment by 

FMW consultancy shall be implemented in accordance with the details and monitoring proposals 
included within it.  The results of the implementation and monitoring shall be made available to 
the local planning authority on request, together with any changes to the plan arising from those 
results.  

 
         REASON: In the interests of highway safety and sustainability. 
 
7 No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first brought into use until the access, 

turning areas and parking spaces have been completed in accordance with the details shown on 
the approved plans. The areas shall be maintained for these purposes at all times thereafter.  

 
         REASON: In the interests of road safety. 
 
8 Before development is commenced, details of the proposal’s energy strategy and BREEAM 

certification for the scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. The agreed proposals shall be implemented in accordance with a timetable to be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority before development is 
commenced.  

 

Page 19



10 

         REASON: To ensure that the development incorporates effective sustainable construction and 
renewable energy measures to reduce its carbon footprint 

 
9 Before any external lighting is erected, a plan detailing the proposed location of any external 

lights, their height (which shall be minimised to protect the external appearance of the area) and 
the measures to restrict glare and spillage shall be submitted to and approved by the local 
planning authority. The scheme shall comply with the CISBE Guides and ILE category E2. Any 
lights erected shall comply with the approved details. 

 
         REASON: To minimise light spillage, in the interests of the protecting the appearance and 

amenity of the area. 
 
10 The development shall be constructed in accordance with the Site Waste Management Plan 

approved as part of this application. Any proposed changes to the plan shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to their implementation.  

 
         REASON: To reduce the environmental impact of the development and in the interests of 

reducing vehicle traffic movements off site during construction works. 
 
11 Prior to development commencing, a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall be 
based on the draft plan submitted with the application. The construction shall be implemented in 
accordance with the details contained within the CEMP.  

 
         REASON: To mitigate the construction impacts of the development. 
 
12 The acoustic fence (and the panels on either side of the washdown area) shall be erected 

before the vehicle preparation centre (VPC) is first brought into use. Before construction work on 
the VPC is commenced, details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority of the materials, height, design and precise position in relation to the 
landscaped bund of the acoustic fence. The fence shall be maintained for as long as the VPC 
remains in operation.  

 
         REASON: To protect the amenity of nearby dwellings. 
 
13 Before any part of the security fencing is erected, details of the design and material of the 

fencing, including the colour, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
         REASON: To protect the character and appearance of the area. 
 
14 The first occupier of the office building hereby approved shall be Hitachi Capital Commercial 

Vehicle Services. 
 
         REASON: The site lies in a location where new employment development is restricted by the 

policies of the development plan to that which is of overriding benefit to the local economy. This 
proposal by this applicant meets these criteria. A speculative application with no local employer 
may not meet these criteria. 

 
15 This permission relates to the following plans: Drawing Numbers 12010(L) 001 P1; 002 P2; 003 

P1; 012 P2; 013 P1; 12010(L) 101 P2; 102 P2; 103 P2; 12010(L) 12010(L) 201 P2; 202 P2; 203 
P2; 210 P1; 211 P1; 12010 (D) 100 P1; 101 P1; 1038 - 001 D; 1038-002; 1038-004 A; 1038-
011; 1038-201-Rev. A; 202-Rev A; .FMW 0781 GA01 Revision D. 

 
         REASON: To define the plans approved as part of this planning permission. 
 
16 No development shall commence on the erection of either the vehicle preparation centre or the 

office building until (1) details and, where requested, samples of the materials to be used for the 
external walls and roofs have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority; and (2) the finished floor levels of the buildings in relation to the existing ground levels 

Page 20



11 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
         REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area. 
 
17 Before the bike store/bin shed structure is erected, details of its design and external 

appearance, including materials, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.  

 
         REASON: To ensure that the development does not detract from the character and appearance 

of the area. 
 
18 Details of the any hard landscaping proposals (including fencing or walls) to the site frontage 

with Westbury Road and the A363 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority before any building is first occupied and shall be completed within the 
proposed timetable for the soft landscaping scheme. 

 
         REASON: To ensure that any such proposals do not detract from the character and appearance 

of the area. 
 
Informatives: 
 
1 There is a low risk to Great Crested Newts, which whilst not normally present on the site, are 

recorded in the vicinity.  The outline mitigation strategy is satisfactory, but the applicant is 
advised that planning permission does not derogate the applicant's legal responsibilities under 
the Conservation of Species and Habitats Regulations (2010). It is the applicant's responsibility 
to obtain a European Protected Species Licence from Natural England to legitimate any action 
likely to breach Regulation 41. 

 
2 The developer must ensure that the diversion of the registered public right of way, footpath no.8, 

is completed before any works which affect its current route are undertaken. Wiltshire Council 
will undertake the diversion procedure under Section 259 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
on behalf of the developer, who will pay all costs associated with the diversion. 

 
 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 W/12/01121/FUL - Land East of Westbury Road, North Bradley, Wiltshire - Construction of New Office, Fleet Vehicle Parking Area and Vehicle Preparation Centre including Associated Staff Car Parking, Landscaping & Access
	Hitachi Location Plan
	Proposed site plan Hitachi


